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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of CONCOR)
Chairman’s Address

Dear Shareholders,

I have great pleasure in welcoming you to this 18" Annual General Meeting of
your Company. The Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the period ended
31st March, 2023, Directors’ Report incorporating remarks/comments of Auditor
along-with replies thereto and Auditors’ Report, have already been circulated to

you and with your permission, I take them as read.

Due to changed business dynamics with implementation of Goods and Service Tax
(GST), customized storage requirements, intense competition with un-organized
sector, it had been decided in the year 2018 to Re-engineer the Rai facility in two
phases for development as an Agri-logistics Centre with changed business model
of leasing/renting out the warehousing space for Cold Storage, CA (Controlled

Atmosphere) storage and Custom Bonded Warehousing to interested parties.

CONCOR has infused a sum of Rs. 27.12 Cr. in FHEL under the Re-engineering
Plan. Major modifications of Rai facility and Construction of two new warehouses
(30,160 Sq. ft. each) under both phases, have been completed at costs of Rs.
15.10 Cr. and Rs. 12.02 Cr., respectively. The new warehouses have been leased

out for a period of 10 years.

During the year 2022-23, the operating turnover of your Company declined from
X 6.86 Cr. in F/Y 2021-22 to X 5.68 Cr., mainly due to lesser inflow of import
caused by the ban imposed by Govt. of India on import of Kiwi from Iran, direct
clearance of imported cargo by importers rather than keeping in Bonded
warehouse, increased diesel expenses and early opening of chambers as per
market demand.
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With leasing out of new warehouses and full utilization of chamber capacity, we
hope to improve the performance of company and generate net profit during FY
2023-24.

In respect of Corporate Governance, I would like to mention that your Company

is following the guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises.

In conclusion, I would like to extend my sincere thanks and deep gratitude to the
esteemed Shareholders, Board of Directors and Auditors for their valuable support,

advice and guidance.

Thanking you,

Sd/-
Place :New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date :25.09.2023 Chairman

Note: This does not purport to be a record of the proceedings of the 18th Annual
General Meeting of the Company.
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (FHEL)
(A wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR)

Directors’ Report
To the shareholders

Your Directors’ are pleased to present their report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ending
31st March, 2023.

RE-ENGINEERING OF RAI FACILITY, OPERATION & MARKETING REVIEW

Due to changed business dynamics with implementation of Goods and Service Tax (GST),
customized storage requirements, intense competition with un-organized sector, it had
been decided in the year 2018 to Re-engineer the Rai facility in two phases for
development as an Agri-logistics Centre with changed business model of leasing/renting
out the warehousing space for Cold Storage, Controlled Atmosphere (CA) storage and
Custom Bonded Warehousing (CBW) to interested parties.

Under Re-engineering Plan of Agri logistics center at Rai, Sonepat, CONCOR
infused a sum of Rs. 27.12 Cr. (Rs. 13.45 Cr. for Phase-I and Rs. 13.67 Cr. for
Phase-II) in FHEL by way of subscription of equity shares of the Company. On
account of urgent need for repair of AHU of 12 chambers and conversion of 13
chiller chambers having mezzanine floor in CA Chambers, capital expenditure of
Rs. 1.65 Cr. was done by way of re-appropriation of funds drawn from Phase-II.
Major modifications under Phase-I, have been completed, by incurring total
expenditure of Rs. 15.10 Cr. (Rs. 13.45 Cr. plus Rs. 1.65 Cr.).

Further, FHEL completed construction of two new warehouses (30,160 Sq. ft.
each) at Rai, Sonepat under Phase-II at a cost of Rs. 12.02 Cr. (Construction &
Related work Rs. 11.97 Cr. & Advertisement expenses of Rs. 0.05 Cr.) and leased
out the same to M/s. Siddhi Enterprises on mutually agreed terms for a period of
10 years.

The financial year 2022-23, has been mixed year for business especially for import
of fresh fruits cargo in Delhi-NCR area. Despite all the hardships, the facility was
running throughout the year. FHEL achieved turnover of Rs.5.68 Cr. in the financial
year 2022-23. During the year the Company increased its customer base from 230
to 254 clients and also increased the range of products being stored. As on
31.03.2023, 36 Chambers (7-Custom Bonded, 20- Chillers and 9- CA) were rented
out for storage of Apple, Kiwi, Oranges, Dates, Pears, Almonds, Walnuts, Garlic
Potatoes, Grapes etc.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, Operating turnover of your Company decreased
from X 6.86 Cr. in F/Y 2021-22 to X 5.68 Cr. in F/Y 2022-23. Total income of
Company also declined from X 6.97 Cr. in FY 2021-22 to X 6.12 Cr., mainly due to
lesser inflow of import during FY 2022-23 caused by the ban imposed by Govt. of
India on import of Kiwi from Iran, direct clearance of imported cargo by importers
rather than keeping in Bonded warehouse, increased diesel expenses and early
opening of chambers as per market demand.

Cost of Sales decreased from X 4.73 Cr. in F/Y 2021-22 to X 4.56 Cr. in F/Y 2022-
23. Further, Employee Benefits Expenses, Finance costs, Depreciation and other
expenses for F/Y 2022-23 are ¥ 0.36 Cr., ¥ 0.13 Cr., ¥ 2.59 Cr. and X 1.05 Cr,,
respectively. The Company suffered net Loss of X 2.57 Cr. during F/Y 2022-23 as
against net Loss of X 3.73 Cr. during previous year 2021-22. As on 31.03.2023,
accumulated losses of the company stood at X 190.17 Cr.

The operating profit of Company has decreased from % 2.12 Cr. in FY 2021-22 to
21.12 Cr. in FY 2022-23. FHEL reduced its net loss by 31% appx. i. e. from % 3.73
Cr. in FY 2021-22 to % 2.57 Cr.in FY 2022-23.

DIVIDEND

Keeping in view the financial position of the Company, no dividend has been
recommended by Directors for the year under review.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Authorized Equity Share Capital of the Company stood at X 250 Cr. as on
31.03.2023. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company
increased from X 220.47 Cr. to X 228.68 Cr., after issue and allotment of 55,60,000
(nos.) and 26,50,000 (nos.) of Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to CONCOR on
27.06.2022 and 16.03.2023, respectively.

CONCOR continued to hold 100% of the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of FHEL,
during the financial year 2022-23.

DEMATERIALISION OF SECURITIES

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 22.01.2019 exempted unlisted
public company which is a Government Company or a wholly owned subsidiary, from the
provisions of compulsory dematerialisation of securities.

FHEL, being an unlisted Government Company and also a wholly owned subsidiary of
CONCOR, is not required to get its shares dematerialised and admitted into Depository
system.
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SECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2022-23.
UNSECURED LOAN
Your Company has not taken any Unsecured loan during F/Y 2022-23.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted any deposit from public as defined in Section 73 and 76
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the F/Y ended on 31.03.2023.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year 2022-23, no application has been made or proceedings pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016.

Further, provisions related to giving details of difference between amount of valuation
done at the time of one-time settlement and valuation done while taking loan from banks
or financial institutions, are not applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS U/S 186

FHEL has not given any loans or guarantee or made any investment covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS OR TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

As per notification dated 5% June, 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, first and
second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of Companies Act,
2013, were not applicable to a Government Company in respect of contracts or
arrangements entered into with any other Government Company.

Further, MCA vide its notification dated 2™ March, 2020 exempted the Government
Company from compliance with provisions of first and second proviso to sub-section (1)
of 188 in respect of contracts or arrangements entered into by Government Company with
any other Government Company, or with Central Government or any State Government
or any combination thereof.

However, the details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with Related parties are

stated under Note no. 41 of financial statements and also attached to this report in
prescribed format as required under Section 134(3)(h) of Companies Act, 2013.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government companies have been exempted to comply with the provisions of Section 197
of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. FHEL being a
Government company is not required to include aforesaid information as a part of the
Directors” Report. However, during the period under review, the Company had no
employees of the category falling under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel).

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2023, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two-way communication,
participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and motivation of the
employees.

RESERVATION POLICY

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and
Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2023, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes & commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this
report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) prohibits any kind of act of Sexual Harassment at
work place and included the acts amounting to Sexual Harassment at Workplace in its

Conduct Rules and Certified Standing orders (as certified in 1998) and Discipline & Appeal
Rules so as to prohibit any such Act.

Page 4 of 9



FHEL has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to receive and investigate
complaints related to "Sexual harassment at workplace" following the guidelines issued
by Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in "Visakha Vs. State of Rajasthan". The committee
consists of four members including one external member who is practicing advocate in
Hon'ble High Court of Punjab & Haryana, Chandigarh. Company Secretary is the Presiding
Officer of the committee.

During the FY 2022-23, no complaint has been received by the Committee.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)
No new R & D activities were carried out during the period under review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

Being a loss-making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure towards CSR
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The particulars in respect of Conservation of energy and technology absorption are
detailed in the Annexure.

There is no Foreign Exchange earnings or outgo during the financial year 2022-23.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

FHEL has identified the possible risks & mitigation plans arising in the key areas of the
Company. Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures, is reviewed by the
Audit Committee and Board periodically.

AUDITORS

Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General of India appointed M/s.
Deepak Gulati & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Delhi as Company’s Statutory

Auditors for the F/Y 2022-23. Statutory Auditor is paid remuneration of X 1,08,000/- plus
Goods & Service Tax, as fixed by Board of Directors'.
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The Statutory Auditors of your Company have given report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23 drawing attention under ‘Emphasis of Matter’ in
respect of sundry debtors etc. Management’s replies to the points raised by Statutory
Auditor are as under -:

Sr No.

Statutory Auditor’'s Remarks

Management Reply

Note no 8(c) to the financial statement in
respect of sundry debtors there is
uncertainty related to the outcome of the
lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors. The company has taken
appropriate action in this respect.

All these cases are sub-judice in
legal proceedings and will be
decided as per course of law.

Note no 8(a) to the financial statement,
includes amount recoverable from Customer
(i) M/s NVR Associates Limited is Rs.68,219/-
i) M/s Elements Exports Rs.2,30,179/- and
(iii) M/s SRC Overseas Rs.82,182/- which are
outstanding for more than 1 year. No
recovery suit has been filed by company
against them.

M/s NVR Associates Limited & M/s
Elements Exports have stored dry|
fruits (Walnut) in Customs Bonded
warehouse and their cargo is still
lying in the warehouse. The
amount will be recovered before
delivery of the cargo to them.

Follow-up is going on with M/s SRC
Overseas for recovery of the dues.
This product was imported fresh
fruit cargo i.e. Nectarine which got|
spoiled being perishable product
due to non-lifting of the cargo by
party and had been disposed off.

'The company has booked during the FY 2022-
23 Rs.6,19,575/- on account of GST Common
Input reversal with respect to expenditure
incurred during March, 2022 of FY 2021-22.

GST Common Input reversal based
on the annual reversal percentage
of ITC availed against exempted
cargo has been done in April 2022
subsequent to filing of GSTR-3B
for the month of March 2022 in
April 2022.

Comptroller and Auditor General of India vide its letter no DGA/RC/AA-FHEL/78-21/2023-
24/301 dated 28.07.2023 communicated about the decision to not to conduct
supplementary audit of the financial statements of FHEL for the year ended 31.03.2023
under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. Further, FHEL is not required to maintain Cost Records
as specified u/s 148(1) of Companies Act, 2013.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT

In accordance with the Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under,
Company has appointed M/s. Amit Agrawal & Associates, Company Secretaries as
Secretarial Auditor, who have conducted Secretarial Audit for F/Y 2022-23. The Report of
Secretarial Auditor & Corporate Governance compliance certificate, without any adverse
observation/remark, are annexed herewith.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board met 4 (Four) times for transacting business of the Company during the financial
year 2022-23.

Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani, ceased to be Director/FHEL w.e.f. 30.12.2022 consequent
upon her relieving from the services of Container Corporation of India Limited (Holding
Company). Further, Shri P.K. Agrawal, ceased to be Director/FHEL w.e.f. 01.02.2023
consequent upon his superannuation from Container Corporation of India Limited (Holding
Company). Board placed on record gratitude for the services rendered by Shri P.K. Agrawal
and Smt. Sangeeta Rakhyani, ex-directors/FHEL, during their tenure with FHEL.

Shri Mohd. Azhar Shams, Director (Domestic)/CONCOR and Ms. Ritu Narang,
SGM(MIS)/CONCOR were nominated as Directors of the Company w.e.f. 03.02.2023 and
08.02.2023, respectively.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13t July,
2017 exempted unlisted wholly owned subsidiaries from the requirement of appointing
Independent Directors on their Board and constitution of ‘Audit Committee’ and
‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’.

Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM dated
16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of
Railways so desires.

The following Directors are on the Board till the date of the Report-:

1. Shri V. Kalyana Rama, CMD/CONCOR & Chairman/FHEL (DIN 07201556);

2. Shri Sanjay Swarup, Director (IM & O)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN 05159435);

3. Shri Mohd. Azhar Shams, Director (Domestic)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN
07627473);

4. Smt. Ritu Narang, SGM(MIS)/CONCOR & Director/FHEL (DIN 10044126).
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RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri V. Kalyana Rama, Chairman, is
liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

In terms of MCA notification dated 5% July, 2017 inserting Rule 4(2) to Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules. 2014, unlisted wholly owned subsidiary
company, is exempt from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on the
Board.

Accordingly, FHEL a wholly owned unlisted subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt under the
Provisions of Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made there-under from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD

As required by provisions of Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of directors
including that of Independent Directors’ and the Board is to be carried out either by the
Board or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by the Independent
Directors. It also requires disclosure of formulated criteria for performance evaluation in
this Report.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, through its notification dated 5™ June, 2015 has exempted
Government Companies from these provisions.

However, it may be noted that Appointment of Directors of your Company is done by
holding company CONCOR, a PSU under Ministry of Railways. Minutes of Committee
Meetings, are placed before FHEL's Board. Minutes of Board meetings of FHEL are sent to
CONCOR for placing them before CONCOR'’s Board. Evaluation of Board Members is done
by CONCOR/Ministry of Railways, as per procedures laid down.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, Board
confirmed that -:

) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March,
2023, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(i) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year under review;
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(iii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(iv) the directors had prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31t March, 2023
on a ‘going concern’ basis;

V) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior
Management of the Company. Link of the Code of Conduct is available on website of the
Company i. e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is
hereby declared that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have
affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct for the financial year ended on March 31%t, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis, is enclosed and
forms part of Directors’ Report.

ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with requirements of Section 92(3) of Companies Act, 2013, Annual Return of
FHEL, is available at www.fhel.co.in.

CONCLUSION

Your Company acknowledges the support and understanding extended by Container
Corporation of India Limited, Bankers and Auditors of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 29.08.2023 CHAIRMAN
Page 9 of 9
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Annexure to the Directors Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Ltd. (FHEL) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) to carry on Cold chain business.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

FHEL’s mission is to provide sufficient handling and storage facilities for perishables in
India. The Company strives to provide value for money to its customers and fulfill
aspiration of its stakeholders by providing qualitative and efficient services and to conduct
its business according to best principles of good Corporate Governance as indicated by the
disclosures given in the Annexure.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CMD/CONCOR is the ex-officio Part-time Chairman on the Board of FHEL and all other members of Board are
nominated / appointed by CONCOR.

As on 31.03.2023, Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Four Part-time Directors including a
Chairman (Ex-officio) and one Women Director.

The Board met four times for transacting business during the financial year 2022-23 on the following dates -:

Board Meeting No. Board Meeting Dates
87 09t May, 2022
88 02" Aug., 2022
&9 08" Nov., 2022
90 20™ Jan., 2023

The Company has adopted CONCOR’s Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management of the
Company. The link of same is available on website of company i. e. www.fhel.co.in.

Based on the affirmation received from Board Members and Key Managerial Personnel, it is hereby declared
that all the members of the Board and Key Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of Code of Conduct
for the financial year ended March 315 2023.
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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, following officials are the Key
Managerial Personnel -:

Shri Santosh Sinha, Chief Executive Officer;
Shri Ravindra Bhat, Chief Financial Officer;
Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MCA vide its notifications dated 5" July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017 exempted wholly owned
subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing independent directors on the Board and
constituting ‘Audit Committee’, respectively. Thus, in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as amended from time to time, FHEL being a
wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from complying with the provisions of Section 177
of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of Audit Committee with requisite composition
of independent Directors and other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, Audit Committee
comprises of the following members -:

Sh. P.K. Agrawal - Chairman (ceased w.e.f. 01.02.2023)
Sh. Sanjay Swarup - Member

Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani - Member (ceased w.e.f. 30.12.2022)
Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams - Member (w.e.f. 03.02.2023)

Smt. Ritu Narang - Member (w.e.f. 08.02.2023)

Ms. Suman Lata, Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee.
The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the financial Year 2022-23 on 09.05.2022, 02.08.2022,
08.11.2022 and 20.01.2023.

The details of the attendance of the members in the Committee meetings held during F/Y 2022-
23 are as under -:

S. No. Name of Members No. of Committee
Meetings Attended
1. Sh. P.K. Agrawal Four
2. Sh. Sanjay Swarup Four
3. Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani Three
4. Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams Nil@
5. Smt. Ritu Narang One@@
Page 3 of 7
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@ Appointed as member of Audit Committee meeting w.e.f. 03.02.2023.

@@ Attended Audit Committee meeting held on 20.01.2023 as Special invitee and appointed as
member of Audit Committee Meeting w.e.f. 08.02.2023.

The Committee reviews the Company's Annual / quarterly financial Results before submission to
the Board. The Committee attempts to ensure that decision making in the company is objective
and that there are adequate internal controls to ensure efficient realization of revenue, and due
propriety of expenditure.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notifications dated 5% July, 2017 & 13th July, 2017
exempted wholly owned subsidiary company from the requirement of appointing independent
directors on the Board and constituting ‘Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, respectively.
Thus, in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there-under as
amended from time to time, FHEL being a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR is exempt from
complying with the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of constitution of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee with requisite composition of Independent Directors and
other matters prescribed there-under.

Further, Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) vide its office memo F. No. 18(7)/2013-GM
dated 16.01.2019 clarified that there would be no bar on appointment of non-official Director(s)
on the Board of a particular subsidiary of a CPSE, in case the concerned Administrative
Ministry/Department so desires.

Hence, there is no requirement to appoint Non-official (Independent) Director in FHEL, a wholly
owned subsidiary of CONCOR under Ministry of Railways, unless Ministry of Railways so desires.

However, in accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, FHEL has constituted
Remuneration Committee, comprised of the following members -:

Sh. P.K. Agrawal - Chairman (ceased w.e.f. 01.02.2023)
Sh. Sanjay Swarup - Member

Smt. Sangeeta Ramrakhyani - Member (ceased w.e.f. 30.12.2022)
Sh. Mohd. Azhar Shams - Member (w.e.f. 03.02.2023)

Smt. Ritu Narang - Member (w.e.f. 08.02.2023)

During the Financial Year 2022-23, No meeting of ‘Remuneration Committee’ was held.

No remuneration is paid to functional Directors of holding Company nominated/appointed by
CONCOR in FHEL. They draw their remuneration from CONCOR as per IDA Pay Scales and terms
& conditions determined by Govt.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

FHEL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company of CONCOR and its turnover or net worth is less
than 20% of turnover or net worth, respectively of CONCOR (Holding Company). The Company
follows Corporate Governance Guidelines and the practice of putting up of Minutes of Board
Meetings of FHEL to the BOD of Holding Company, viz. CONCOR.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
Details of location, time and date of last three AGMs are as under -:

AGM Date Location Time
27.09.22 Container Corporation of India Ltd. 15:00 Hrs.
C-3, Mathura Road,
New Delhi - 110076

02.09.21 - Do----- 15:30 Hrs.
28.09.20 e Do----- 17:30 Hrs.
AGM of Current Year
Date : 25.09.2023
Time : 04:00 PM
Venue : CONCOR Bhawan, C-3,
Mathura Road, New Delhi-110076
DISCLOSURES
(1) During the year, there was no transaction of material nature with the directors or their

relatives that had potential conflict with the interest of the company.

(i1) There were no instances of penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory
authority due to non-compliance on any matter related to any guidelines issued by
Government during the last three years.

(iii)) In terms of Corporate Governance Guidelines & to adopt best practices therein, the
Company has ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ in place.

(iv)  Your Company has filed report on Corporate Governance in specified format to CONCOR
(holding company) & DPE within stiputated time.

(v) Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines, are detailed in this report.
(vi) FHEL has been following Presidential Directives.and Guidelines issued by the Govt. of
India from time to time regarding reservation of SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically

Handicapped & Ex-Servicemen in letter and spirit.

(vil) No Expenditure has been debited in the Books of Accounts, which is not for the purpose
of business.

(viii) The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and incurred for

the Board of Directors and Top Management.
Page 5 of 7
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(ix)  Details of Administrative and office (Other) expenses as percentage of total expenses -:

Fin.Year Admn. & Office (Other) Total Expenses Percentage of Admn.
Exp. Rin Lakhs) (Xin Lakhs) & Office (Other) Expenses
Vis-a-vis Total
Expenses
2022-23 104.71 869.93 12.04%
2021-22 111.19 1069.59 10.40%

(x) Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Accounting Standards issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India are disclosed in relevant notes to the
Balance Sheet of the Company.

(xi)  The Company has an adequate risk assessment and minimization plan. Certificate of
compliance of applicable laws, is being placed before the Board.

(xii) Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI.
(xiii)) No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board.

(xiv) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Financial Results : The Annual Report and quarterly un-audited financial results are regularly
posted by the Company on its website.

Annual Report : Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’
Report, Auditors’ Report and other information, is circulated to members and others entitled
thereto. Management Discussion & Analysis report forms a part of the Annual report.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR(S) SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING
Name Date of Birth | Date of | Qualification | Expertise in specific | List of | Details of
appointment | s functional areas Other Other
Compa | Committee
nies in | Membershi
which p
Directo
rship
Held
Shri V. Kalyana | 28.09.1963 01.10.2016 B. Tech | Ex-Railway Officer having | Three* | One**
Rama (Mech.), wide experience in the field of
ICWA. Engineering, System Design,
Railway & multi-modal
logistics operation and Project
Planning and Commissioning.
Shri  Mohammad | 19.02.1966 03.02.2023 B. Tech | Ex-Railway Officer having | Eight# | Six##
Azhar Shams (Computer experience in the areas of
Science), Business Development,
MBA International Marketing,
Human Resource and Public
Relations.
Ms. Ritu Narang 26.06.1974 08.02.2023 B. Tech | IT Professional having | Three$ | Seven$
(Computer experience in the areas of
Science), planning, designing &
MBA implementation of centralized
(Finance) applications, Y2K
compliances, hardware,
networks. ISO certified state-
of-art Data Centers.

* (1) Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR), (2) CONCOR Air Limited and (3) Sidcul CONCOR Infra
Company Limited
** Chairman of Apex CSR Committee of CONCOR.

# (1) Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) (2) Transworld Terminals Dadri Private Limited (3) CMA
CGM Logistics Park (Dadri) Private Limited (4) TCI-CONCOR Multimodal Solutions Private Limited (5)
Himalayan Terminals Pvt. Ltd. (6) Gateway Terminals India Private Limited (7) Punjab Logistics Infrastructure
Limited (8) CONCOR Air Limited.

## Member of CSR and Risk Management Committees of CONCOR, Chairman of Audit and Risk Management
Committees of CONAIR, Member of Audit and NRC Committees of PLIL.

$ (1) CONCOR Air Limited (2) SIDCUL CONCOR Infra Company Limited (3) Punjab Logistics Infrastructure
Limited

$$ Member of Audit & Nomination and Remuneration Committees of CONCOR Air Limited, Member of Audit &
CSR Committees and Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of SIDCUL CONCOR Infra
Company Limited, Member of Audit & Nomination and Remuneration Committees of Punjab Logistics
Infrastructure Limited.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 29.08.2023 CHAIRMAN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure & Developments :

Food/Agriculture and medical sectors are perhaps most important for the mankind and any
country. Accordingly, Food/Agri Sector is on priority list of present Indian government as
well. In the Agri sector, Fruits and Vegetables segment holds a prominent position. India
is the second largest producer of fruits & vegetables in the world. This in itself is a proof
that Fruits and Vegetables sector and businesses dealing with it hold immense business
potential and an excellent business opportunity.

The Fruits and Vegetables sector has its own challenges. Fruits & Vegetable business in
India is almost entirely unorganized. The farm sizes are small and traditionally growers
either bring their produce to nearby markets/ mandies or send the produce to commission
agents for sale. All the players in the supply chain growers, commission agents, other
middlemen and retailers, are totally unorganized. However, from past few years few
organized players like retail chains are trying to establish themselves in the market place.
Still due to the perishable nature of the commodity, the emphasis on fresh produce in retail
chains is very low and this also is bought from nearby mandies only. Further, the country
lacks Cold Chain infrastructure and therefore, generally during the season we see glut in
the market & prices dip to unsustainable levels. All factors mentioned above lead to losses
of produce.

Most of the Cold Store facilities available are traditional and lack modern equipments.
However, from the past few years, modernized cold storage facilities are being established
in producing areas. There is a gap with respect to availability of state-of-the-art Cold
Chain Infrastructure & Knowledge of Storage of other Fruits & Vegetables. This presents
both an opportunity & a problem in this sector.

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage
of apples. With the modifications being carried out we will be able to offer services which
will accommodate traditional storage practices with better results due to the state of art
technology. Further, encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits,
private sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in
the country. In last 16 years, many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple
growing states of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. This exponential increase in
the capacity has resulted in rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving
precious foreign exchange for the country. Despite all these developments the import of
apples and other fruits, is still increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA storage
/CCI in the country.
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SWOT ANALYSIS (Strength & Weakness) :

Strengths -:

a) Fruits & Vegetable market in India is huge & high percentage of perishability holds
tremendous business potential for Cold Chain Infrastructure segment.

b) The increase in the disposable income in hand of the consumer has led to year-round
demand for apples and hence larger demand for CA Storage.

c) Being in operation for last 16 years the target customers are reasonably sure of our
storage facility.

d) Being a PSU, the transparent and uniform policies and dealings with all leads to better
confidence among the clients.

e) There is huge latent demand for quality produce, as country is importing large
quantities of Fruits.

f) High Margins in this trade are possible, resulting in higher demand potential.

Weaknesses -:

a) The sector is highly unorganized.
b) Smaller players like growers are not able to reap the benefit of long term CA Storage
due to poor financial risk taking capacity.

c) Lack of storage cost bearing potential of other Fruits and Vegetables and also the
other products like rice, grains etc.

d) Lack of knowledge of Pre-Harvest care and Post-Harvest Management among the
clients leading to lesser interest in storing other products.

e) Retail Chains have not come up as expected and so organized distribution’s share is
still small.

f) The trade is by & large on credit to stakeholders who do not have bankable credentials.

Opportunity & Threats :

Opportunities -:

a) The proven results of apple storage in CA Stores in last 16 years has led to increased
storage and the number of clients and hence bigger business opportunity.

b) Improved living standards have led to higher and round the year demand of fruits in
the country and hence increased emphasis on long term storage of Fruits and
Vegetables.
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Since every year fruit imports is growing impressively, it shows customers are
preferring quality fruit and thus organized business can make a significant
contribution.

Threats -:

a) High Capital cost leading to high rental rates.

b) 'Big investments made by private sector parties, like commission agents, growers etc,
by making both backward and forward linkages leading to shortening of the supply
chain.

¢) Non- availability of trained Manpower.

d) Increasing competition from Private player who have set up CA store in last few
years.

e) Unethical practices of differential pricing adopted by the private player.

f) Offering bigger basket of services to the clients like free space for packing, extended

credit period to the clients on the basis of their goodwill etc.

Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

The Company is dealing in storage of fresh fruits at Agri Logistic Centre, Rai, Sonepat comprising
of Bonded Cargo Warehousing (EXIM) and Domestic Cargo Warehousing (DOM). All the
activities of the Company revolve around this business and all the operations are in India. As such,
there is no other reportable segment defined by Accounting Standard INDAS-108 related to
Operating segment.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has in place well defined roles, responsibilities and authorities for
employees at various levels. This coupled with robust internal MIS systems, ensures
appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring. Adherence to these
processes is monitored through frequent internal audits. The Company has internal audit
system that requires internal audit firm to certify the appropriateness of internal controls in
operation and checks deviations from laid down procedures. The Internal Auditor is the
external firm directly reporting to management at higher level, thus ensuring its
independence. Reports of internal auditor are reviewed and compliances are ensured.

SECURED LOANS
Your Company has not taken any Secured loan during F/Y 2022-23.
UNSECURED LOAN

Your Company has not taken any Unsecured loan during F/Y 2022-23.
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10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15.

Fixed Assets

(XinCr.)
Year Ended March 31 2023 2022 %oage Incr. (Decr.)
Original Cost of Assets incl. 80.38 77.28 4.01
ROU Asset (Kingal Land &
HSIIDC-INDAS-116)
Less : Accumulated Dep. 54.94 52.38 4.89
Net Fixed Assets 25.44 24.90
Inventory

As on 31.03.2023, there was no closing stock of fruits in FHEL.
Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are 47.64% of operating income of the year.
Cash & Cash Equivalent

The Company keeps available cash in flexi Fixed Deposits in Banks.
Income

Income from operations decreased from X 685.64 Lakhs in FY 2021-22 to X
567.89 Lakhs in F/Y 2022-23.
Cost of Sales

Cost of Sales decreased from % 473.41 Lakhs in FY 2021-22 to ¥ 455.84 Lakhs in
FY 2022-23.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased from % 111.19 Lakhs in FY 2021-22 to X 104.71 Lakhs
in FY 2022-23.

Employee Remuneration

The Employee Cost has increased from X 22.66 Lakhs in FY 2021-22 to X 36.58
Lakhs in FY 2022-23.
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16.

17.

Material Developments in Human Resources, Industrial Relations Front,
including number of people employed

Human resource management function in the organization is designed to maximize
employee performance and is an employer’s strategic objective. As on 31.03.2023, there
were 4 regular employees working in FHEL.

Positive IR has been the goal of HR Department. FHEL provides two-way communication,
participative culture, open platforms for discussion for ideas and motivation of the
employees.

FHEL a wholly owned subsidiary of CONCOR, a Central Government Public Sector (PSU),
is following all the Presidential Directives and Guidelines as issued by the Government
from time to time regarding reservation for SCs, STs, OBCs, Physically Handicapped and

Ex-servicemen in letter and spirit. As on 31.03.2023, there were 03-General and 01- SC
employee working in FHEL.

Environment Protection and Conservation, Technological Conservation,
Renewable Energy Developments, Foreign Exchange Conservation

Measures taken for environmental protection and conservation:

The company has facility for rainwater harvesting pits at the CA Store, Rai where all the
rain water collected (on roof top of the store and pavement) is re-charged to the ground.

Air pollution is arrested by proper installation of chimney of DG Sets as per the norms of
Pollution control board.

Sound pollution of DG Sets is avoided by proper installation of Insulated canopy.

Disposal of sewer is made to the septic tank at CA Store, Rai, thereby causing no ground
pollution.

Water conservation is achieved by collecting waters in 442KL water tanks and timely
detection and rectification of water leakages.
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18.

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

19.

Foreign Exchange Conservation :

FHEL is one of the first companies who had invested in specialized CA Store for storage
of apples. With the modifications being carried out we will be able to offer services which
will accommodate traditional storage practices with better results due to state-of-the-art
technology. Encouraged by the suitability of technology and associated benefits private
sector has seized the opportunity and invested heavily in setting up of CA Stores in the
country. In last 16 years, many facilities have come up in Delhi NCR and in apple
growing areas of Himachal Pradesh and Jammu & Kashmir. This exponential increase in
the capacity has resulted in rather stunted growth of imported apples, thereby, conserving
precious foreign exchange for the country. Despite all these developments the import of
apples and other fruits, is still increasing exhibiting further growth potential of CA
storage/CCI in the country.

Outlook :

India is a huge country and the market for quality fruit & vegetables is growing rapidly.
India is the second largest producer of Fruits & Vegetables in the world. Hence the
opportunity available is large.

The country is prospering, leading to higher disposable income available in common
man’s hand. This has fuelled the demand for healthier food products like Fruits and
Vegetables round the year, leading to higher demand for cold chain infrastructure across
the country.

Increasing trend exhibited by the import of Fruits and Vegetables.

Encouragement to FDI. The foreign companies are bringing the latest knowhow in the
country thereby creating newer business opportunity.

Risks & Concerns :

(i)  The business is dependent on weather conditions, particularly rainfall. It can be
adversely impacted with hail storm during pre-harvest period.

(1))  Unorganized nature of the trade.

(iii))  Un-economical small farm holdings

(iv)  Lack of trained manpower

(v)  Local competition

(vi)  Unethical practices adopted by private players.

(vii) Differential pricing vis a vis transparent and uniform policy adopted by PSU’s.

(viii) Covid 19 or any other pandemic.

Page 6 of 7
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20. Corporate Social Responsibili CSR

Being a loss-making entity, FHEL is not mandated to incur any expenditure
towards CSR in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

21. Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis,
describing the Company’s objectives, projections and estimates, expectations,
predictions etc. may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the
applicable laws and regulations. Forward looking statements contained herein are
subject to certain risks and uncertainities that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those reflected in the forward-looking statements. Actual results,
performances or achievements may vary materially from those expressed or
implied due to economic conditions, Government policies and other incidental
factors such as litigation and industrial relation etc. Readers are cautioned not to
place undue conviction on the forward-looking statements.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Place : New Delhi (V. Kalyana Rama)
Date : 29.08.2023 CHAIRMAN
Page 7 of 7
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Annexure to Directors’ Report

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(1) The details of various measures taken during the year under various heads of
Energy Conservation are as follows -:

1. POWER CONSUMPTION FOR REFRIGERATION AND AIR CONDITIONING,
AUXILIARY UNITS

a) Energy Saving Screw Compressors and Chillers have been installed for refrigeration of
CA Store, Processing Area Air Conditioning and Office building. Also, Variable
frequency drives (VFDs) have been used for Refrigeration compressors, Cooling coil fan
motors (312 motors), Air cooling unit fan motors for Air-conditioning (51 motors),
Cooling tower fan motors (4 motors), Carbon dioxide scrubbers (06 motors).

b) Cooling towers and Condenser water pumps are operated based on ambient conditions
and actual requirement.

c) Optimization of Running of refrigeration compressors and air conditioning system.

d) Cleaning and replacement of air filters for air compressors, nitrogen generator
compressors and diesel generators.

2. Lighting :

Energy Conservation in lighting is achieved by use of Energy efficient tube lights for entire
plant, use of CFL’s for office building, use of electronic ballasts, cleaning of light fittings for
optimum utilization of light illumination and lighting voltage optimization. During the year
special care was taken to ensure that lights operated only in areas where it was required. Area
identified and implemented were External lighting, utility area, corridors, sorting hall, packing
hall, machine room, and office building.

3. Heat energy :

Loss/Gain of heat energy in cold room is prevented by optimum thermal insulation thickness for
stores and cladding for pipe lines for minimal heat loss/ gain, cleaning of chilled water tubes,
condenser water tubes and Minimum Infiltration of external Air to Cold Store and processing area
by proper sealing of incoming and exit gates.
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4. Fuel oil :

By regular and proper preventive maintenance and calibrations of components of diesel generators,
minimum fuel consumption is ensured. By putting off Nitrogen Generator plant, forklifts and
stacker charging, the load on the DG is reduced and these equipments are run when power supply
is available from electricity Boards.

5. Battery chargers for material handling equipments and other purposes:

Chargers are installed with automatic low current charging devices for energy saving.

Impact of measures taken for Energy Conservation

FHEL had changed its business model from procurement, storage & sale of apples to leasing of
chambers. To conserve resources varied measures are being taken to reduce the Electricity
consumption. Electricity expenses for FY 2022-23 have been decreased to X 2.04 Cr. from X 2.23
Cr. of FY 2021-22, as the business of chiller, CA Chamber and custom bonded warchouse is
increasing day by day.

(i1)The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy-: NIL

(ii1)The capital investment on energy conservation equipments-: NIL
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B. Technology absorption

(1)

Efforts made  towards
technology absorption.

Due to changed business model of FHEL, no efforts were
made towards technology absorption.

(ii)

The Benefits derived like
product improvement, cost
reduction, product
development, and import
substitution.

Due to changed business model, no direct benefits are
derived to the company however storage in CA/Cold
Bonded Chambers is helping the concerned
parties/buyers.

(iii)

In case of imported
technology (imported during
the last 3 years reckoned
from the beginning of the
financial year), following
information may be
furnished

(a). Details of Technology
imported

(b). Year of import

(c). Whether the technology
been fully absorbed

(d) If not fully absorbed,
areas where absorption has
not taken place and reasons
therefore.

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

(iv)

Expenditure incurred
onR&D

(1) Capital

(i) Recurring

(iii) Total

(iv) Total R & D expenditure
as a percentage of turnover

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Office . H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph. : +91-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail | amitagcs@gmail.com, amit2kas@yahoo.com

Tao,

The Members,

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
Concor Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road

Opp. Apollo Hospital. New Delhi-110076, IN

Dear, SirfMadam
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records, We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4, Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

k2

Date: 30.06.2023

Place: Delhi

Membership No.53 R
Certificate of Practice No. 3647
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries
Office : H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA

Ph. : +91-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.: +91-9811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmail.com, amitzkas@yahoo.com

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointmentand Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members.

Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
CONCOR Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road
Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited
(hereinafter called the Company) having its registered office at Concor Bhawan, C-3 Mathura
Road, Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion. the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2023 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter;

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s. Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited for the financial year ended on 31%
March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii}) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India

(ii1) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
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a) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

¢) Payment of Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

e) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal
Act), 2013

f) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

¢) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948;

h) Indian Trust Act, 1882 created for PF purposes for its employees.

i) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

j) Food Safety and Standard of India Act, 2011

k) The Factory Act, 1948

1) Compulsory Notification of Vacancy Act 1959
m) Payment of Wages Act

n) Workman's and Compensation Act

0) The Gratuity Act

p) Equal Remuneration Act

q) Industrial Dispute Act

r} Employment of Children Act

s) Indian Stamp Act

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc,

However, During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not
applicable to the Company because of clause (I) no FDI and ECB has been taken by the
Company since incorporation and for (II) & (IIl) clauses below the Company is unlisted
Company. Hence, comments are not required to be made in respect of these clauses:

L. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulation made there under to
the extent Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

II.  The Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’).

1Il.  The Listing Agreement with any Stock Exchange.
We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors and Women Director. The Changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act,
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members™ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct
and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been
reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit by
other designated professional.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events /actions in pursuance
of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a major bearing
on the Company's affairs as given below:

a. Allotment of 55,60,000 equity shares as on 27.06.2022 to Container Corporation Of

India Limited
b. Allotment of 26,50,000 equity shares as on 16.03.2023 to Container Corporation Of
India Limited
it Agrawal &Associates
Place: Delhi

Date : 30.06.2023

Wﬁc‘g]

CS Amit Agrawal
(Proprietor)

M. Ne. F5311, C.P. No. : 3647
UDIN: FO05311E000527437
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Office : H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092, INDIA
Ph. : +91-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.: +31-8811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmail.com, amitZkas@yahoo.com

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,
Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited

CONCOR Bhawan C-3 Mathura Road
Opp Apollo Hospital, New Delhi-110076

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Fresh &
Healthy Enterprises Limited, (herewith referred as ‘the Company’) for the year ended on 317
March, 2023 as stipulated in *Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises Government of India,

‘The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in
above mentioned guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statement of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in above mentioned DPE guidelines.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency of the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

Place : Delhi For Amit Agrawal & Associates

Date : 01.08.2023

M. No. F5311, C.P. No. : 3647
LIDIN: FOOS311EOODT717176
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US1908DL2006G01145734)
Balance sheet

As at March, 31, 2023

(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As Bt
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027

ASSETS
[1) Nan-current assets
[a) Property, plant #nd sguipment 2 250353 2ARQ57
(o} Intangible assets 050 0.73
{¢) Capital wiork b progréss 3 960,60 653.55
ld) Financlal assats
{1} Lowrs 4 o 013
[ii} Cther financial assets 5 4739 4587
(&) Deferred tax assats [Net) ;
(1] Other non-current assets & 2245 1308
3,574.42 321833
2] Current assets
() Inventories 7 0 am
b} Financial assets
[} Trade recelvables 8 2056 11554
(i) Loans 9 013 012
(] Cash and cavh equvaients 10 3578 141.22
(] Dther bank balances 11 549 RE L]
{v) Other financial sisets 12 7.00 6.30
(e} Currant tas asiets |Niet) 13 1761 1581
() Cthaer current assets 14 JL75 10830
758.53 600.76
Total assets 4,333.55 381509
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
[a) Equlty share capital 15 212.858.20 2204720
[B) ODther aquity
Resenves and surplus 16 [18.975.73) {18,718.28)
Total equity 3,892.48 342892
[1] Men-cumrent llabilities
{#] Firancial Liabiiines
(i} Borrowings o 2
(i} L ease Linbilines 17 13461 B3.58
{17} Other financial labilites . -
(b} Long-term providior 18 1559 149
() Deterrad tas fabilltes (Net) .
{d] Other non-current labllities - -
_A50.60 17.51
(2} Current linbifities
{2} Financial liakilities
[1} Bexrrowings 137
[} Lease Liakilitied b4 2835 &mn
(i} Trade payabdes il
| &) Total cutstanding dues of micio entasprises
wnd sl nted prises s 608
{h) Tkl wiststaneding dues of creditors cther than
milcro enterpsises and amall anterprises B
(i) Dther Dinancial lipbilities 2 %318 38097
(b} Other currant labeities i3 120 16.91
(e} Shoft-tarm provicion: kL .08 2.0
290.87 408,66
Totel Nabifities 44147 4B6.17
4,333.95 3,815.08
Accompanying notes to the francial stitements 1to 60
In tmms of our repart aitached
For Deepak Gulatl & Assoclates
Chartered Ag_u@um

PN Mo, DO7545N

b
-
b . ) e | .-6“'&/
i \ ¥, Kbyars ama HM Tantenk Snna
R AL nn‘ﬂ‘q._.;‘.‘i. < Chairman Bheetse | —CEO
3 — _-'-r-
ﬁ:::ﬂ!m’saj?'—,mwpuia-fl‘ Fumar Lata fag
Faim S Do oAy ey Chief Financial Dfficar
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited [CIN:U51909DL2006G0I1145734)
Statement of Profit and Loss

For the Year ended March 31st, 2023

(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs uniess otherwise stated)

Forthe year ended  For the year ended

e TN er:h‘;l, 2023 Miu’:::, 2022

| Revenue from operations 25 567.89 685.64

Il Other Income 26 44,64 11.40

il Total Income {1+ 11} 612.53 697.04

IV Expenses

fa) Purchases of traded goods 27 - -

(&) Change in inventories 28 . 2.68

fc] Direct expenses 29 455,84 470,73

(d] Employee benefits expenses an 36.58 22.66

fe) Finance cost 31 13.12 6.79

{f] Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 259.68 455.54

fg) Other expenses 33 104.71 111.19

Total expenses 869.93 1,069.59

V  Loss before tax (Il - IV) (257.40) (372.55)

VI Tax Expense
{1} Current tax
{2) Deferred Tax
Total tax expense

VIl Loss after tax for the period (V - V1) (257.40) (372.55)
Vil Other comprehensive income
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plan, net of income tax (0.04) (0.05)
Total other comprehensive income for the period (0.04) (0.05)
IX Total comprehensive income for the period (VIl + VIll) (257.44) (372.60)
X Loss per equity share of Rs.10 each:
{1} Basic (Rs.) 37A (0.11) (0.17)
(2) Diluted (Rs.) 37A (0.11) (0.17)
Accompanying notes to the financial statements 1to &0
In terms of our report attached
For Deepak Gulati & Associates
Chartered Accountant
FRN Ne.-007545N

.

u-hf:i’ff ) e %

% V. Kalyana Rama mrﬁmum-smﬁ Santosh Sinha
CA Arjun Singh Gusakt - ' Chalrman Director ~ CEQ

Partrier ——

M.No. 553737 3 5
Flca>
LDiN Nn-l-;sﬂ—'a-?&c‘?_up ¢ S&"_‘ /"’ %‘
By 7 Ravindra ENat

Date: 16,05.2023 Suman Lita
Place: New Delhl Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US1909DL2006G01145734)

Statement of Changes in equity
For the Year ended March 31st, 2023

(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Equity share Share premium Retained earnings Total
Particulars capital
Balance at March 31, 2021 21,501.20 41.33 (18,387.01) 3,155.52
Changes during the period S46.00 - - 546.00
Profit for the year - e {372.55) [372.55)
Other comprehensive Income for the year - - (0.05) 10.05]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (372.60) (372.60)
Batance at March 31, 2022 22.047.20 41133 {18,759.561) 332892
Changes during the period £21.00 - - 821.00
Profit for the year . {257.40) (257.40)
Other comprehensive income for the year - . (0.04) {0.04)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (257.44) [257.44)
Batance at March 31, 2023 22.868.20 41.33 (18,017.05) 389248
Aecompanying notes 1o the financlal statemants 11060
As per ou lepoet of 2don date attached
For Deepsk Gulat! & Associates
Chartared Atcountant
FAN No.-D07545N

A W)
M 1§ | Lg ._,’-‘f.'r' i
o) x ¥. Kafyana Kama MW Santash Sinha
CA Arfun Singh Gl . Chadrrman Directar RO
Partnar N "
M Mo 553737 --
A \

UniN No: AALES T84 qu’_ W
Date jﬁﬂlﬁ.:;u 311 ZL":UEET ‘ -—E:Lmnﬂ Rawingra Bhot
Place: New Delhi

Compaty Secratary
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Fresh & Henlthy Enterprives Limited |CIN:LIS1909012006G01145734)
Statamani of Cosh Flow for the year ended 318t March, 2023
(Al amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year andod
Farticulars Motes No.
March i!= 2023 March 15 EE
A. Cash Now from operating activities:
Nt loes after tas [257.40) 1372.55]
Acdjustiments for:
Depreciation and amortration 15968 55,54
IneTeat income (1233 714
Non Dparating income 2761 {1.50]
intecest on security deposit given (0.43) {as
Interest expense on lease Babifity 131 6.7
Mgt (Profit)/ loss on sale / discarding of fiand assety 10.77) {0.86]
Orperating profit bafore working capital changes (35.79) 7985
Adpurstrents for changss In working capital ©
- {increatel decrease other o current financial atsets (o.43) |0uan)
= [Increase]/decrease in other non curment st Lpa LD
- lincreae)/dacrease in mventories - 258
- (incrense)/decreace in Lrade recsvalies 4458 (3154
- (Increwse)/ decrease other current finuncial assets 04a {201
(Increase)/dacrense in other currem miets 3355 {15.04)
Increase |decrease) In kong term provisions 194 114
Increase/{decrease) ather financial liabilites {100 18} 5580
CIncreased | decrease) lesse (abiites 3953 [ T3]
Increase/ [docreass) in other current fAnancial labiitie 1971 R
Ingresise/|deorease) In short term provisions 007 sk
Cash (usad in]/generated by operating activities 3553 10167
- Income tanes (paid)f refund HN 13.03)
Met cash [used inl/genarated by operating activities 43.74 FB.64
B. Cash How from Investing Activities:
Furchase of fued asiets [313.81) (98.83|
Capial Woark bn Progres. [306.65) [444.55)
Sabe of flued assett 0os7 6ld
Laans 1o employees LN ] iz
inleiest reonved 1119 LDE
Mt carsh generated by investing activities [E07.98) {529.96]
€. Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Payment of lense liabilities {1195} (L0
Hepayment/ procesds of Borrowings
Equity recehved from Holding company 821.00 54500
Mgt ciesh [used in)/generatad by financing activitles 806,05 533.70
Net Increase/[decraase] in cash & rsh equivalents 244.81 102.38
anﬁmmmithhﬂn“ﬁﬂuw 146.66 44.38
Cash and cosh egulvalents at the and of the year 10, 11 39147 146,66
Nohws:

The dbowe Statement of Cash flows bas bees prepicsd In scoordance
with the “Ingimect Method" prewribed in the indlan Accounting
Standard(ind AS}-¥ on “Statement of Cash Flows"

Cash and cash equivalents. included in the cah flow statement comanse
the follgwing:

-

bt

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cazh in hand
Balance with banks
1A ELTENT A Counts 15,13

in Flexi Fieed Deposit Accounts 35655 45,56
Other bank balances comprioes:
Bank Rudarices hald a5 masgin maney o a5 Lecility sEainst guarsntoss 550 Sudd

Non cash tramsactions: — ==

Tree campany did not snties Into any nom cash investing and financing actiities which are not reflected i 1hsee stotement of cash flows
ACCOMpanying notes 1o the financhal swtermems BT
For Deepak Gula

Chartered Aceolmtant
FRN No.-097545)

vt = ..':'. | Lo it

\ & ‘ 1

L= - E ] ¥, Kabyana Rama M Samtesh Sinha
ChA Arjun "‘"{:‘*‘“ Y Chalrman Direstor CEo
Fm“ssﬁnr A E@-T—‘
Mo, ol ; Em
LM Mo 13553 ?& Pt ___'__,-r"'"'-_‘
Cinte: 16,05 2023 13 6 FUB8TS Surman Lata Ravindra
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the financial statements

NOTE 1; SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FRESH AND HEALTHY ENTERPRISE LIMITED

1.

Corporate Information

Fresh and Healthy Enterprises Limited (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Container
Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) is engaged in procurement and sale of fruits, creation of
cold storage Infrastructure in India and leasing of Controlled Atmosphere (CA) chambers and allied
services, to provide complete cold chain logistics solutions to the various stakehalders in this field.
It is classified as Union Government Company and is registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhl,

The Company was incorporated in 2006 and is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Container
Corporation of India Limited (CONCGR).

2.

3.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{Ind ASs’) notified by the Central Government under section 133 of the Indian Companies

Act, 2013 as Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended from
time to time.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each
reporting period. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset ar liability at the measurement date. Falr
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the financial statements is determined
an such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IND AS 116 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value In Ind AS 2 or value In use in Ind AS 36,

Recent pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting polides. Accounting palicy information, together with other
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to Influence decisions of primary

users of general purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that
it na longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact.in its financial statements.

13 !
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Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting
estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a
definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”,
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured In a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact In Its financlial statements,

Property, plant and equipment:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated Impalrment losses. The Initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management, the initial estimate of any decommissioning obligation, If
any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use, finance costs. Cost is net of interest on capital advances and duty
credits and Is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses. In
respect of assets due for capitalization, where final bills/claims are to be
received/passed, the capitalisation is based on the engineering estimates. Final
adjustments, for costs and depreciation are made retrospectively in the year of
ascertalnment of actual cost and finalisation of claim. Items such as spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with this
Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for

their Intended use and the cost of assets ot put to use before the Balance Sheet
date.

Provision for stamp duty at the prevailing rate is made by the company at the time of
capitalization of the amount paid for acquisition of land & is capitalised as part of the
cost of Land.

Depreciation/amortization:

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over its useful life and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013.

Land leases where the lease term is for the significant economic life of the asset are
considered as finance leases. Such leases are Included |n property plant and
equipment and are deprecated over the lease period. Freehold land or perpetual land
leases are not deprecated. Land leases where the lease term is not for the significant
economic life of land are considered as operating leases and are classified as
prepayments. Such leases are amortized over the lease term.

The estimated useful life and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of each

reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment Is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and Is recognised in profit or loss.
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6.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Expenditure on computer software, which is not an integral part of
hardware, Is capitalized as an intangible asset. The cost of software includes license fee and
implementation cost and s capitalized In the year of its Iimplementation. Software Is
amortized over five years belng management's estimate of life of assets over which economic
benefits will be derived. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

AL the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and Intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets haye
suffered an Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated In order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assat {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recaverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised immediately In profit or loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at cost or Net Realizable Value {NRV), whichever is lower. Cost
comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
Inventory to their present location and condition. Cost s determined on specific identification
method for fresh fruits and First in First out (FIFO) method for other inventories,

Employee benefits:

(1) Liabllity for gratuity, leave salary, sick leave and medical reimbursements benefits
payable to employees is provided for on accrual basis using the Projected Accrued
Benefit Method (Projected Unit Credit Method with control period of one year) done by

an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:

* Service cost (Including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and
losses on curtallments and settlements):

= Net interest expense or income; and

* Remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or

less In the line item [‘employee benefits expenses]. Curtailment gains and losses are
accounted for as past service costs,

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the
balance sheet with a charge or credit recagnised In other comprehensive Income in
the period In which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in ather comprehensive
income will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost s recognised in profit
or loss In the period of a plan amendment. Net interest Is calculated by applying the
discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or

A T
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The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the
actual deficit or surplus in the company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits avallable

in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Termination benefits are immediately recognised In the statement of profit or loss
account. A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity
recognises any related restructuring costs.

(ii) Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund and Family Pension
Fund are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss as and when accrued.

(iii) The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the

services rendered are recognized as an expense during the period when the
employees render the services,

10. Revenue recognition:

Revenue from sale of goods/services is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates.
Sales are recognized when the significant risk and reward of ownership of goods are

transferred to the customer and no significant uncertainty as to its determination or
realization exists.

Income from automatic sorting and grading through machine and handling Income is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract, provided there |s no
significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of consideration.

Interest income from deposits is recognized an accrual basis. Interest other than deposits is
recognised at the time when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or reallzation
exists. Interest on income tax refunds are accounted for on the finalization of assessments,

Rental income, cooling charges and income from space for sorting packing machine/
strapping machine is recognized on accrual basis.

11. Claims/counter-claims/ penalties/awards:

Claims/counter-claims/penalties/awards are accounted for In the year of its settlement.
12. Taxes on income:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or

deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabllities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
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temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilitles are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the inltial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

13. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of the
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

14. Provisions, contingent liabilities & contingent assets:

(i) Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, It is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying

amount |s the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
money is material).

(ii) Contingent liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there Is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed anly by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where It is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate
of the armount cannot be made.

(iii) Contingent assets;

Contingent assets are not recognized in the accounts., However they are disclosed
when the possible right to receive exists.

I AT Y,
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15. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share ('EPS') are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity

equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the result would be anti-
dilutive,

16. Cash and Cash Equivalent

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash efuivalents include
cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

17. Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (I} the contract Invalves the use of an identified asset (I} the Company has
substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset,

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately
from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration In the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand -alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease companents.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company Is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease,
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

For operating leases, the rental income/lease payments received are recognized on stralght-
line basis over the lease term.

For finance leases, finance income Is recognized over the lease term based on a pattern
reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net Investment In the lease, When
the Company is an intermediate lessor It accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. The Company assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. However, If a head lease is a short-term lease, wherein the Campany has

accounted lease payments on straight line basis, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

The Company as a lessee

At the date of the commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use
assets ("ROU') and a corresponding lease liabllity for all the lease arrangements in which it is
a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and low

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

In determining the lease term, Company considers the Option to extend/terminate the lease,
wherever it is reasonably certain to exercise such option.

S Y
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18.

19.

Lease liabllity is initially measured at the present value of future Lease payments due to the
lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by referance to the rate
implicit in the lease and in case It is not determinable, Company's incremental borrowing rate
on commencement of the lease is used. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics,
the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate
specific to the |lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolic as a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company Is reasonably certaln to
exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, If the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The Company only Include
variable lease payments in measurement of the lease liability if they depend on index or
rate. Other variable lease payments are charged to statement of profit & loss. The |ease
liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to
reassessment/ modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of
profit and loss depending upon the nature of reassessment/modification. However, lease
modification is accounted as separate lease if the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets and the consideration for

lease increases by an amount commensurate with stand-alone price for the increase in the
sCopea.

The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at Inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initlal measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any Initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be Incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it Is located., They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses, if any and adjusted for any re- measurement of the lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term or remaining

useful life of the underlying assets as prescribed in IND AS 16 (PPE)/Schedule 1I of
Companies Act 2013, whichaver is shorter.

Segment reporting

The Companies’ segmental reporting is in accordance with Ind AS 108 Operating Segments,
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the board of directors, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, and has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial llabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilitles are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilitles, as appropriate, on Initial recognition,
.
= L=
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20.

21.

Subsequent measurement

The company’s financial assets represents assetc whose contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and these assets are held in a business model to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows at maturity consequentially in

accordance with Ind AS 109 these assets are carried at amortized cost using effective interest
rate.

The Company’s financial liabllities are not held for trading and are also carried at amortized
cost using effective interest rate.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset and financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are discharged.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported In the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultanaously.

Impairment of financial asset

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) mode] for
measurement and recognition of Impairment loss for financial assets.

Trade receivable

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision
matrx method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provisian matrix is
based on historical default rate observed over the expected life of the trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical default rates
are updated and changes In the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Further receivables

are segmented for this analysis where the credit risk characteristics of the receivables are
similar,

Other financial assets

Impairment loss on other financial assets is recognised based on the difference between the
present value of the expected cash flows and carrying value.

Key sources of uncertainties

Useful life of Property plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: As described at 5 and 6
above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. The estimate of useful life may be
different on account of change in business environment and change In technolagy which
could have a NW@I?-E* on the financial statement.

’ T N
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Fresh & Healthy Entarprises wiummmnuu‘ml
Notes to the financlal statements

{All amounts are in 2 lakhs unless atherwise stated)

Naote - 3 : Capital work in Progress

Asat Ay ot
Particulars March 31,2008 March 31, 2022
Capital work in progress 960,60 653.55
Total 950.60 653.95

Intha an-going enginsering projects of the Campany, at the end of the yiar, on the basis of the work that has béen completed
on the basis of last measuramant i all respects in terma of the contract for the sald project supported by ills, provision is mads,

which is shown under capital work in Brogress,

[m) CWIP aging scheduin

Foa the Perkod Fnded March 31, 2008

CWIP Aunan in CWIP for a pariod of Trotal
Lisas thaw 1 ymar -2 years 23 mslm than03

Projects in progress 306.65 477.10 14164 3501 | 06060

Projects smpotarily suspanded |

For the Year Ended March 11, 2002

CWIP Afmigurnt in CWIP lor o paried of Totsl
Less than 1 yoar 1-2 years 2.3 yoars mmnou

Projects i progivss a77.10 14164 3B .| esses

Projects smpararily suspended

() Forcnmm«pwm:ummmumuwhumn:mmnmummmmmumr

completion schedule shall be given®*:
For the Period Ended March 31, 2023
To b comypdated n
Wi Leas than 1 yedr 1-2 yaars 2.3 yoam Mors than 3
Phsa-ll Civl wok 1 165 34 - -
EM#HWIMEMLHHMImm | ML |
Fur the Year Ended Masch 31, 2003
T b copplistind n
CWIR Lasa a1 year | 1-2 years 2-I yoars Eﬂ'ﬂn!

Phase-Ul Civil work 26770 - - *
Dietails of project where sctivity has been suspandes | ML
MNote -4 Loans

As at As ot
Particalars March31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured, Considered Good - 8t amartised cost
Loans to Employess 0.01 0.13
Tatal 0.0 0.13
Note - 5 : Other financial assets

LR T AL at
Particulars Morch 31,2023 March 31, 2032
Security deposits
Unseturad, cansidered pood

Govi. Authoritiss 47.29 46,87

Total 47.20 4587 i
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Note -6 : Other non current assets

As
Particulars mn::,m:: March n.:;:
Prapald rent 3245 38
Prepayments - lnasshold land — 1504 18.35
Total 1248 23.08
Note - 7 ¢ Inventory

AsEy A3 ot
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Inventaries (kwer of cost and net realisable vilue)
Stack-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 002
Total 0.02 0.02

The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense during the year was R Nil (for
The mode of valuation of Inventores INRV/cost price whichever 1 less.

the year ended March 31, 2027 He.2.68 lakhs),

Trade Receivables
Financlal asset
Mate - 8 : Trade Raceivables
Aspt Asat
Particulars March 31,2023 wiarch 51, 2022
Dutstanding for period excesding six Months 18736 157,52
Dutstanding for period lees then six Months 83.20 158.02
Total 270.56 315,54
) Trade Recelvabios sgeing schodule
For U Period Enden March31, 2023
Parscuipe A 8 c DwA+BeC
Unibiliod Trade | Tradw Rscsivaie Outstanding for following pencds from dus dale of payment &
Haos sy allilo ol dua 1.2 2.8 Mare than 3 Totat
¥ ¥ PERME
11} Lindisputad Trade recawalées - considarad good 3.85 ool 0.91 B0
(4} Unesisputed Trade Reosivisbles — which have
lﬁmw.ﬂs fak
i} Lndisputed Trade Recebubles — credit Z
5,490 0.46] 14857 180.06
[nbitiec dues JNIC =1
Foo ihe Year Ended March 31, 2032
T A B G DBl
Untstind Trde | Trads Receivanis mmhmmpmmmmniwr
Hacalyalie ot due 1.3 23 Maore than 3 Totai
: YERm
1) Undisputet! Trace recofvables - considensd good 0.04 013 £.20 16521
(il Undisputea Trade Recevables —whzh hove
InCrRass i Cisl
(1} Undiispder Tride Recelvables — cradit impaired .
(v} Dvsputsd Trade Recewables—considerod genod 246 147.88 150,33
(vi Disputed Trade Aocovaben - which heve signficant
B in
i:\nl Disputes Trade Receivables —credil impaired

Ennu-u dusn
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The Cradit risks refers to the risk that a counterpany will default on its contractual abligations resulting in financial loss Lo the company. The Company has moderate
Expasure 1o the credit risk owing to the balance of trade recalvable. To Tackle the credit default the company has adopted a policy of releasing the matarialfservice:

galnst paymant. The Company has filed the fegal cases in respect of some of the customers and mpects @ favouratle outcome in all of the legal casas. Thus, the
campany has maderate sxposuce 1o credit ik

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade recevablies based on a provision matrix. The pravidion matrie
takes Into account histoncal credit Ioss experience and adjusted for torward-loaking information. The expected credit boss allowance 15 based an the againg of the
days the recelvables are due and the rates as Eiven inthe pravision matriz, The provision matriat the end of the reporting period is as follows.

Expected  Espected Credit

81 Ageing Cradit loss{%) bossi)
Asal As at

Farticulars Mareh 11, 2083 March 31, 2022

Outstanding for perind less than sk months
Ourstanding for penod exceeding than six month

Age of recelvables

As ot A at
Farticulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Dutstanding for period less. than six months 83370 158.02
Qutstanding for period excoeding than six months 187 36 157.52
Total 270.56 315.54

As ot A at
Particulars March 31, 2023 Muarch 31, 2022

Balance a1 the beginning of tha year =

Addition in expected credif loss alowance ~
Amount written off

Balance at the end of the year -

l'hlmmﬂﬂnmmunwdmmumhmmmmlmhuhhmmd unrelated. Customers
respresent mare than 5% of the total balance of trade recoivables comprise of fallowing:

Az at s at
Particulars Mhirch 31, 2023 Warch 31, 2022
Matadluxmi Cold Storage 1513 .
R K Brothers .64 26.64
GAPL B5.73 B5.73
Tarun Kumar -
Styam i Agri Business -
United Sealr Pye, Lid, =
Adarih Fruits 26.00 18.85
IL.C Agro . 21:15
SRF International 2852 341

k:mcmnpawmﬂlldﬂmmlmuhum:tﬂm following customers:

A5 at Az at
Parties Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
a] Cases where Arbitration/Legal casefAppeal has been filed
(I} GAPL B85.73 B573
{FiSanjeey Kumary . 030
(il Tarun Kumar 1265 1265
(W) Ram Chandra & Sons 7.33 133
(vinMahaluami Cold Storage 1583 1513
[{wi)R.E.Brathars 2664 26.54
(wEl] Madadh Poaltry Farm C/a Sushil Jindal 109 189
{wiii) Surjeet Rana 0.46 .46
() SRF International & SFA Enterprises 40,04 -

No provision is respect of the abiove mentionsd recsivibles has been made In the books as Mznagemant axpicts a

favourable outcome in all of the above jegal cases. & 1 g .of Sanjeey Kumar the amount has been written

wheresss the arbitration award (s 51l awaitad in this CasE. % 4 G:(?/
da | f
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Note -3 : Loans

Partculars As st As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured, Considered good - at amortised cost
Loans to smployess inchuding interest acorued 012 12
Tatal 012 012

Maote - 10 : Cash and cash sgivalents

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2023 Mnrchﬂ.‘ 022

Bank Balances;
b current acctunts 1518 0%.66
in Fleo Fiued Daposi: Aocounts 366 65 45.56
Total 3B5.78 141.22

Note - 11 ; Other bank balances

Particulars As at Asal
March 31,2023 March 31, 2072

Bank Balances held as margin mongy or security
BRRINSE EUATANLOAS 5.69 544
Tatal .60 5.44

MNota - 12 : Other financial assety

Particulars As at Az at
March 31, 2023 Miarch 31, 2022

Unsacurad, considered good

- Govt. authorities 0.43
Clakms recoverable 554 5.54
Interest accrued But nol due 1.29 015
Othary 0.17 0.18
Total 7.00 B.30

Mote - 13 : Current tax assets | Net]

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance income txTOS (Net of provisions) 17.61 25.82
Total 17.61 25.82
Currant Assots

Mon financial assets
Mate - 14 ; Other current assets

Particulars As Bt As at
March 31, 2023 Wtarch 31, 2022
Advances (o employses 077 0.7%
Advances Others 4.3 .
G5T |Input) 57.14 56.10
Advanee to UHBVNL-Depaosit waork 40.07
Preguld rent .38 038
Prepayments - l2asehold land 0.1 0.21
Prepad expenses/ insurance 10.03 8.7%
Totsl TL.75 106.30
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US19090L2006G01145734)

Notes to the financial statements
(ANl amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 : Equity
Particulars

As at

Authorised Capltal ¢

45,00,00,000 Equity share @ As10/- per shars (P.¥. 25,00.00,000

Equity Shares of Ry 10/- per Sharoj

tssued, subscritued and paid up:

23,86 82,048 Fully paid squity shares of ¥ 10 sach as at March

31, 2073 [PY. 22,0472 048 Fully paid equity shares of 210
each)
Total

Asar

March 31, 2023 March 31, 3032

25.000.60 25,0.00
25,000.00 25,000.00
22,868.20 2204720
22,858.20 22,047.20

Fully paid aquity shares, which have o par valus of R 10, carry one vote per share and earry a right to dividiends

Fully paid equity shares [in Lakhs)
Particulars MNumber of shares  Number of shares
Balanoe as at March 31, 0712 2.204. 72 1,150.12
. Ehanges during the period® B2.10 54,60
Balsnoe as at March 31, 2003 1,286.82 1.304.72
* Right issue subscription by CONOOR
Details of shares hald by the holding company, its subsidaries and sssoclates
As at Ag at
e March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Container Corporation of india Limited, the holding company 1.286.87 120472
Details of shares held by each shareholder bolding mare than 5% shares
Pecth As gt As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fully paid equity shares (In Lakhs) th-ruhh;ﬁ I'lmb-r-fd::;
Containes Corporation of india Limited. the holding company 218602 LI
% holding ol % holding of equity
HE shares shares
Containgr Corporation of Indis Limitéd. tha halding company 10 1%
Sharehoiding of Promoties® o inder;
For the Feroed Ended Manch 11, 2021
[
{Snares hikt by promolers ot ihe end of the yaar % W
8 Mo Promaier name  |[No. ol Shisse e Lova
Caontmnar
Teiba Crpormicn of ndia 1]
Lt
Fow the Yeur nded Manch 41, 2022
Bravem heticd vy pemnnoges @)t enct of (e yeae “"fb":“"r_"‘:"‘“
- Yeof hatal
5 Mo Proraited name Moo, of Sharas .
Cortming:
Totm Carporation of s 1204 T 100 ]
Lixi

“Prommalse here mams prumidEr o defined in ihe Companes Ao 2013

** Ut phall b v separately for sacn clisss of shoroy

‘"mwﬁmhmmnwmhmrnhmqm1mwnmmmm.

i P th Taesd e then vwilh respect (o v dete of meue

Note 16 Reserves and surphis

As ot As wt

Farticulars

i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Snare Premigm 4133 4133

Retanad Earmings -G e N ;15 g1, I:I‘“j 118, 750.61)
; iy ) (18, 718.28)

w\w’y
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Note - 16.1 ; Share Pramium

Particulars As at As &t
__March 31, 2023 March 31, 2002
Balance at tha beginning of the year 4133 4133
Migvament during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 41.33 41.33

Share Premium s recorded for the difference betwoen the par value of & campany’s shares and the total amount company has receted for the
shares ssued. The Company can use the balance of the account for the purposes as soecified in the provisions of Companies Act, which Includas 1o
pay off equity sxpenses, which include underwriter faes. it can also b used for the ssuance of Bonus shares and fof costs or expenses related to this

lsspance.

Naote - 162 : Retalned sarnings

A at

Particulars Asat
March 31, 2023 mg 022
Balance at the beginning of the year [18.753.61) {18387.01)
Loss during the veir (257 A0) [3T1.55)
Ottier comprabansive income arising from remeasuremant of {004} 10.05)
defired benefit cbligation
Balance ar the and of the year {19,017.05) {18,759.61)
MNate 17 : Financial Uabilithes-Loase Liabilities
" A3 at s at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
At amortised cont
Lesrse Linbility-Kingal Land (IND AS-116) B2 B3.55
Lease Nabillty-HENDC (IND AS-116) 71.50 -
Total 13461 63,55
Note 18 : Long term provisions
As al s gt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for employer benelits 1599 13.56
Tatal 15.99 13.96
Nate 19 | Borrowings
As at As at
i March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured - at amortised cost
Hank overdralt =
Total .
Note 20 : Financial liabilities: Lease Liabilitles
Asat As ot
e March31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Laase Liabilvty-Kivgal Land (IND A%118) 1540 8,71
Lease Liability-HSUDC (IND AS-116) 1185 -
Tatal 1835 a7
Nate 21 : Trade payables
Asat As @
Partic
artheulary a1,
Trade pavables

Total outstanding dues of mico enterprises and smail

Erterprisas

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mioo

entarprisas and smalk eplerpises
Total

The comgany pays its vendors immediataly when the invoice is acooured and ne interest curing the year has been pakd or 13 payable. [Ref Note no48 for
disciowire made under terms of Micrn Small &nd Medium Enetrprives Development Act2006), The company has

paid within the pre-agioea Credit terms,

0.as LRt

0.05 0.05

the practice 1o ensure thatall payables are

Trade Payables eging scheduia
For the Year Ended March 31, 2023
A ] = D=&+BHC
Crtstanding for following penods fom oe dats of
payman
"'"b]::b:"m’ Trade parymbie ot due o —
Luss Uhar
Partculss o 1-2 yones 23 years| than3 Total
yobrs
1} MEME 3 - s
(i} Ciihers = - -
il Dhmpratnel i i — RESME —— 0.05 0.05
iy dume - Ciftuiles 4 " Y - — i .
|Untille oues T "Iﬂ"“- ]
|




For the Year Ended March 31, 2002

A B [+ D=psBaD
Outsturging for following peniads from due dats of
paymans
Unbied Trade o pryoen ik i
Paysbie Less than More
Particulnm 1 yia 1-1 yenrs 2-3 years| than 3 Total
years
ik MEME = =
(i) Othars - = .
(1) Diinpulsd duss - WSWE - 0,05 .05
v iDisputerd chos - Oitwern - = .
[nimaa duss NiL |
Note 22 : Other current financial Habilities
Pacticulars As at As ol
March 31, 2003 March 31, 2022
At amaortised cost
Btvanoe/ disposits from parthes EE ] .41
Deferrad Revans 1335 1458
Earnest monsy depositSecurity Deposit 6732 51.78
e to Micro and small enterprises g.58 R.98
Othess 129.E5 2122
Total 253.18 380.97
Note 23 ;: Other current liabilities
As at As at
Particulars
2023
Statutory dues payabie 720 1691
Tatal Lo 16.91
Nate 24 : Short term provisions
As ot As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provvmion for employes banalits 1.08 2.02
Total ro9 02

o

55




Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G0I145734)

MNates to the financial statements

{All amounts are In T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 25 : Revenue from operations

Bl For the year ended  For the year ended
March, 2023 March,2022
Sale of cartons/Iinventory - 593
Cooling charpes 41939 414.15
Bonded Warehouse Charges 77.66 153.87
Lease Rent for Warehouse Charges 5.18 -
Handling Income-Bonded Warehouse 891 15.76
Handling income 56,75 95.93
Total 567.89 6B5.64
MNote - 26 : Other income
For the year ended  For the year ended
rhava March,2023 March,2022
Interest on bank deposits 9.71 4.77
Interest on security deposit given 0.43 .38
Other interest income 2.62 241
Other non-operating income 31.28 283
Total 44.64 11.40
Note - 27 : Purchase of traded goods
For the year ended  For the year ended
Particular
o March,2023 March,2022
Stock-in-trade B
Stores and spares >
Total - =
Note - 28 : Changes in Inventories
For the year ended  For the year ended
P la
ticue March,2023 March,2022
Opening stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 2:70
0.02 2.70
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares 0.02 0.02
0.02 0.02
Total - 2.68
Direct Expenses
Note - 29 : Direct expenses
—— For the year ended  For the year ended
March, 2023 March, 2022
Plant Operation & Maintenarce 103.81 7037
Handling expenses (Rai) 50.92 88.49
Store Management Charges 38.76 34.89
Power and fuel 260.83 272.35
Other Operating Expenses 1.52 4.63
Total 455.34 470.73
i

A



Note - 30 : Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
i March,2023 March,2022
.Saian,r, allowances and other employee benefits 30.47 18.45
Contribution to CPF and EPS 2.59 1.73
Employees welfare and medical 243 1.53
Gratulty 1.09 0.95
Total 36.58 22.66
Note - 31 : Finance cost

For the year ended  For the year ended
PRS- March,2023 March,2022
Interest Expense Lease Liability (IND AS-116) 1312 (.79
Total 13,12 6.79
Note - 32 : Depreciation and amortisation expenses

For the year ended  For the year ended
Fattioulans March,2023 March,2022
Depreciation and amortisation 259.68 455.54
Total 259.68 455.54
Note - 33 : Other expenses

For the year ended  Faor the year ended

i
PR March,2023 March,2022
Printing and stationery expense 0.63 0.68
Travelling and conveyance 0.24 0.06
Rent office space/ Rai land and licensa fas* 4.03 15.57
Office/ CA store Up keeping expenses 12.52 11.40
Repairs and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 11.55 11.23
- Others 3.51 .12

Security expenses 26.72 2566
Office vehicle/ car hire charges 4.52 4.16
Postage, telephone and internet 0.1% 0.14
Bank charges 0.01 0.01
Legal and professional charges 5.1B .77
Insurance premium 19.88 21.53
Advertisement 3.49 1.89
Statutory audit fee 108 1.08
Auction Service Charge 0.13 0,04
Property tax Haryana 163 1.48
Trade licence 1.07 1.07
Loss an sale of fixed assets - 144
Bad Debts Write O 5.64 0.04
Miscellaneous expenses 273 2.12
Total 104.71 111.19

* Includes land given on lease by HSIIDC Limited, Rai for 30 years from 26.03,2003; further extandable
for a period of 99 years for which no lease premium Fas been paid. Lease rent is @Rs.1.50 per sg. mtr,
per month for 66,400 sq, mtr. area for first 15 years and thereafter will be fixed mutually; kept same
for FY. 2021-22 and Iease meney-on land given on lease by H.P. Govt. as per provisions of Rule, 8l &

(1) of H.P. Lease Rules, 2013 Yor 99 years w.e.f. 01.08.2014.
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US19090L2006G01145734)
Motes to the financial statements
{adl amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

34, Income taxes

34.1 income tox recognised In profit or loss

ek Year ended Year ended

ars 31/03/2023 31/03/3022
Deferred tox
In respect of the current year
Total Income tax expense recognised In the current year -
The incomae tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit/{loss) as follows:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 11/03/2023 31/03/2022
Profit/{Loss) befare tax {257.40) [372.55)
Income. tax credit calculated {at 25% *{Health Education Cessl% =26% 603
[Cy. ) 255+ Maalth Education Cess) 4%=26% [P.Y.) f | (96,86
Effect of expanies that are not deductible in determining taxable profit - .37
Income tix not racognised on losses {66.93) (96,49

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

The tak rate used for the reconciliations above is the corporate tan rate of 25% plus cess of 3% on total income tax and Surcharge payable by

carparate entitles in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law for FY, 2022-2023
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G0I145734)
Notes to the financial statements
(All amounts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)

37A. Earning/|Loss) per share

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Bas:. and diluted earning/ (loss) per share of Rs.10 (0.11) (0.17)
eac

There are no dilutive instruments issued by the company.

Basic and diluted earning/(Loss) per share

The earnings/(loss) and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings/|loss) per share of

Rs.10 each are as follows.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to (372.55)
owners of the Company (257.40)
Earnings/{Loss) used in the calculation of basic
(372.55)
earnings per share {257.40)
Weighted average number of equity shares for
the purposes of basic earnings per share 2,250.06 2,180.51

378. Impact of changes in accounting policies

There are no changes in the accounting policies which had impact on the amounts reported for earning/(loss) per share.

b 8
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Fresh & Hanlthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US190900 2006G01145734)
Notes te the financial statements
(Al armounts are in ¥ lakhs unless stherwdse stated)

39, Financlal Instruments

{1) Cagltal managemant

The compatsy fmiews Uhe copital structune 3s and when neei afises. As part of this review, the cost af capital and the rishs associated with esch class of
capital are considered, Bazed an this, the Company determines the amount of captal required for anasal and long-term ogerating plans. The funding
feipdremants are mit through squity and short term bormowsngs. Tie Company monitors the copital strscture on the besiv of Nel debe 1 equiny ratia
an sutisity profie of the averall debt portfulio'of U Cormisany, The compimy a0’ Jullject to any sxtermally impadet capital reguirements.

Th Company & relying on ihe suppon of 03 holding compeny for meeting the long term and sheort-tarm poals obligations, Further, the Company has
dlrgady ¢y aluated vanaus buvmess prospects bisied on which Managament is of the view that there B no doubt sbout the viability of the Company ami
the Camgany will be i # good contition i the conting yeen withaut doubiting 14 ability fo continue 5% @ going concem.

For the puipose of capitel mansgement, capital ncluides sued Bquity capital, share premium and all other msarves atribuable 1o the anuity
sharehaiders ¢f the Company, Ket debt Tang-term gnd thart-term bortawings including interest arcnued as redused by cath and cash equalents

39,11} Gearing ratio

Thie Cowmipainy han no outstanding diebit as at the sed of reporting pedod. Accordmgly, the Compary has il goaring ratio'as ot March 31, 2023 and March
31, 2022 respectively.

{1} Categories of financial Instruments
A at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial asests
Cash and bank balances 391.47 ik Bib
Tracle recen/alies TN 315.54
Lo 0.13 035
Dieher Financisl sasets 54.79 5317
Financial liabiiltes
Tinde payables 0.05 afs
Borrowing = .
Cthr Financual |iatsiithes 153.18 ARNLGT

(1) Financial risk management objectives

The financinl risks relating to the aperatians of the Company are managed by anslyzing espogures by degrae and magnitude of risks. Thirse risks include
marked risk (including currency rige interedt rate righ aod price rakj, credit fal nd Bgiidity risk, Further, thare has esn no change to the Company's

expoaie 1o market thiki or the manner in which thess reks we telng maniged and measured, Howsver COmmpiny & exposians to the market fgk does
ot arised in mapect of the following:

i} Thi: company b not subject 1o transactions denominativg i Fareign curmencies:

b The company doses nat hold any investivnes,
—

-
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EP:I‘I Lradie risk nmw
et Fisk refars to the risk thal & countey party Wil default on s contractual elligations resulting in fnancil loss to e company, The Campany has
lirmited exposane to the credit risk owing to the bslance of trade recerabiie a5 sxplained in note & To Tackle the credit defaudt the company lias adoptad

i palicy of releasing the material/services against payment. The Company has Rled the legal cases in respect of some of the customers ans eapects a
favourable outcome in all of the legal tases,

[w]ibquidity risk managament
The Company manages fiquidity rsk by marstaining adequate ressnes and continuousty imaiitorinyg fotecast snd sctusd cash flaws and by matching the
maturity profiles of fimancial assets angd labiitles,

The table below provides detail regarding thie contractual maturities of Francal lishiliis ingluding estinrated intarest payments as at March 31, 2003;

| Particulnrs Carrying  Duwin Dt Iy Divig D i Due atter Total contracted
amount  Istyear  2nd year 3rd year 3rad to Sth Sth year cazh fiows
e
Finangial Liahilities
Borrowings and interest thers . - . = =
Trade paysbies 0.05 0us - - - 008
I Hibdiities 253 1 253, P . . - 53
The table helow provides detsils regarcing the confractusl maturites of Snancia! lsbilites inzluding estimated intersst payments as at March 31, 2072
| Particilars Carrying  Duein D in Duin Dt in Due after Total contracted
smount  lstyear 2o yoar 3rel yuar 3rd 1o 5th Sth ymar cash fows
e
|Financial tinbilities
Borrowings and interast there . - - .
Traght payalles oS oS - - . - 0%
Cithiesr futnacicial lindilithes 28057 38067 s = 18097

Thee table hat besn drawn up based oo Ui urdlicountad cantractun maturdies of the financial assats including interast that will be earned on thate
niEets,

The table beiow provides details regarding the contractual maturities of finoncal ssaets nchading sstimated interest recaipts a5 81 30 March 2023

Particulars Carrying upto 1 12 year 23 yuar 35 year More than 5 Tetal Contracted
amount yoar yaar Cash ;Il
Trade recelvables T8 2056 - . - - 17056
i -
Culrrent #ssats a1 012 - - [ ]
Mur-curent aeses 115} - am . om
Othor firmncial assets
Curvent sasels .00 To0 . . . Lo
|__Non-cumrent ghpis 4729 ; g - 54,78 54,78

The tabile below provides detaily rogarding thie contractial maturites of finandsl sasets Including sstimated interest receipts as a 31 March 2022

Particulars Carrying  uptol 1-2 year 23 year 35 year Maore Lan 5
Bmgunt  ymar year

Trade recebsables 15 31554 - .
Loany

Current aszety o1z 02 - .

Newi-current gasets [iNES oiz om
|Other financial sssety

Current sasets A3 530 - E . E
| Mon-curment spjgts LLE-F . - 54.78
[wl) Fair value messsrements

Mo financia! sisets and financial Eabities of the company arm mentured at fair value #t the end of ihe regorting period,

{wil] nuuu-uimmmwwm“mmnmm;mwmmmn redpuined)

Ra ot As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
Fairvalug  Corrying Carrying
Particulars hlerarchy  smount Fair wakus ot Fair valug
Fira
Trade receivables Lt A5G 270.56 31554 315.54
L
Curiedat assets L 2 o1z 0.12 on L ]
Non-custent agsets it 3 [¥} | am 013 13
Other financial sssets
Current assety Lewed } .00 T.00 &30 .30
Hon-current asiats Lewel 2 47.24 4735 4687 4687 |
Finamclal Liabilitios*
Baorrowings inchding Lol J
Inkerast acoised
Traihe pary alibes Level 2 o5 205 oS 0.05
Orhar financisl halsilimes Layal 3 153 253 J80.57 380 97
The fasr vahies of the finsncisl assets anid fvanclsl 1abilties beluded in the level 2 catepprias above have been detérminad in accordance with Benerally
accepted prcng madels based on @ discountoo cash Now snafyss, with the - inputs being the dBeownt rate that reflects the credit 1lsk of
roumE AL, araid g

rT
Y
* there b n synificant chang® in the faic valise of these financial sassls and feancisl fa Iﬁ.‘ Faar vaiue 5 2qual 1o its ca value,
3
o/ '/9
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:US1909DL3006G01145 734)
Notes to the financial statements

(Al amounts are In ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A0.Lease arrangements

al  Asalessee:-

Leaging arrangements

The Cempany has entered into operating leases arrangements for Land with jease terms.

For the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Land]
Depreciation Charged &.85)
Interest axpense on Lease Liabilities 13.12

Expense related to short term leases
Expense related to low value leases A
Expense related to varlable lease payments o
Income from Sub-leasing right-of use assets E
Total Cash autflow for leases 1195

Addition to Right of Use Assets 8953
Gains ar Losses arlsing from sale and leaseback transactions -
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period 144 91

For the Year Ended March 31, 2022

Partlculars Land
Depreciation Charged 0.70
Interest expense on Lease Liabilithes 5,79

Expense related to short term leases ]

Expense related to low value leases
Expense related to variable lease payments -
income from Sub-leasing right-of use assets -
[ Tatal Cash outflow for leases 1230

Addition to Right of Wse Assots
|Bains or Losses arlsing from sale and leaseback transactions -
[Earr\r-ing amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period 64,23

Tha table below provided details un-discounted contractual miaturity analysis of lease llabilities as at 31st

March, 2023
hl il ril ih Tatal

St Carru::: ::: ;::un in I'Inue in3 Due“irl 3 I:u- afier 5 I

Amo ear |Year Year ta 5 Year |[Year Cash fi
Leaie Linbilites 162 56| 15.1 1831  1ma1] 3b.81 929.28] 1020.50
The table below provided details un-discounted tontractual maturity analbysis of lease (fabilities as a1 31st
March, 2022
Particulars

Carrying  |Due  injpue in 1"’|Dua in3"|Due in Sﬂlﬂun aftar 5" :::’: _—
Amount 1" Year [Year Yaar 5" Year |vear ks

Lease Liabilities 7226] 6.1 6.15 6.35] 12.91 876,18 907.74

The Company manages liguldity risk by mdintaining adequate reserves and continuously menitaring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity praofiles of financial assets and lease liabilities.

There i no lease payment associates with short term leases {having lease term of 12 months ar less) and
leases of low value Fssets (less than Rs, 3.5 lakhe), i
The leases which are not vet commenced are NIL ..--"..""I

/
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b)

A% @ Lessor:-

The Company has given warehouses on cancellable operaling leasss,

Payments recognised as an income

For year ended March 31st 2023

Particulars

‘Warehouse

Minlmum lease payments recalved

5.18

Sub-lease recoveries

For year ended  March 31st 2022

Particulars

Warehause

Minimum lease payments recejvws

Sub-lease recoveries

Operating Leasas

For year ended March 31st 2023

Particulars

Warehouse
Lease Payment to be received
1st Year 175,17
nd Year 175.17
3rd Year 175,17
dth Yoar 17517
Sth Year 175.17
Afrer 5 Years 958.25

For year ended March 31st 2022
Particulars ‘Warehouse
Lease Payment to be recalved
1st Year =
Ind Year =
ard Year =
Ath Year -
Sth Year -
After 5 Years -
.4-"""""#
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN; U5S1909DL2006G01145734)
Notes to the financial statements

(ANl amaunts are in T lakhs unless otherwise stated)
41. Statement of Transactions with related parties

Holding Company
Containgr Corporation of India Limited

Part Times Directors
Sh. V Kalyana Rama, Chairman
5h. P.K. Agrawal, Director [ceased Lo be Director w.e.l. 01.02.2023)
Sh. Mohammad Azar Shams, Director (w.e.f, 03.02.7023)
5h. Sanjay Swarup, Director
Smit. Sangeata Ramrakhyani, Director (ceased ta be Directar w.e.f 30.12.20232)
amt Rty Narang, Director [ w.e.l. 08.02.2023)

Key Management Personnel
5h. Santosh Sinha, CEQ
Sh. Ravindra Bhat, CFQ
Mz, Suman Lata, Company Secratary

The following table summartzes related-party transactions and balances with the holding company M/s Container Carparation
of India Ltd for the year ended and as on reporting date:

Transactions during the year
. For the year ended  Far the year ended
Pa
e March31,2023  March 31, 2022
Equity Infusion 821.00 546,00

41.1 Compensation of key management personnel:
Compensation to Key Management Personnel (Le. CEO, Company Secratary & CFO) is paid by the halding company
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Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited (CIN:U51909DL2006G01145734)

Notes to the financial statements

42. Analytical Ratios

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
(a) Current Ratio{ in times) 2.61 1.47
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio{ in times) -

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio( in times) -
(d) Return on Equity Ratio{in %) -1.00% -2.00%
(e) Inventory turnover ratio( in times) - -

(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio( in times) 2.10 2.17
(g) Trade payables turnover ratiol in times) < -
(h) Net capital turnover ratio ( in times) 0.42 0.82
(i) Net profit ratio( in %) -45.00% -54.00%
(i) Return on Capital employed| in %) -7.00% -11.00%

(k) Return on investment ( in %)

4l
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FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of FRESH &
HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31%*March 2023, the statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), Statement of change in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. on that date annexed thereto (hereinafter referred to as
‘Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’).

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the afeoresaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the
act read with the Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rule 2015 as amended
(IND AS) and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31%March 2023 and its financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), change in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our sudit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:
1. Note no 8(c) to the financial statement in respect of sundry debtors there is

uncertainty related to the outcome of the lawsuit filed against various sundry
debtors. The company has taken appropriate action in this respect.
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2. Note no 8(a) to the financial statement, includes amount recoverable from
Customer (i) M/s NVR Associates Limited is Rs.68,219/-, ii) M/s Elements
Exports Rs.2,30,179/- and (iii) M/s SRC Overseas Rs.82,182/- which are
outstanding for more than 1 year, No recovery suit has been filed by
company against them.

3. The company has booked during the FY 2022-23 Rs.6,19,575/- on account of
GST Common Input reversal with respect to expenditure incurred during
March, 2022 of FY 2021-22.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the company and the audit, we have
determined that there are no key matters to communicate in our report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also respgsﬁtr[gﬁor\cverseeing the Company's financial
reporting process V% e
)
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and the standalone financial
statements represent the unde i transactions and events in 2 manner
that achieves fair presentationw "™ AL




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), as
amended, Issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure -A"” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.  Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose
of our audit;

(b)  in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;

(c)  the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of cash
flow and statement of change in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND AS financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
director is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate.report-in "Annexure -B”.




(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us we report as under with respect to other matters to
be included In the Auditor's report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014:

(1) The Company has disclosed all the pending litigations which would impact
its financial position. (Refer note no 8c to the standalone Financial
Statement)

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

(iv) (2) The management of the Company has represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries or jointly controlled
entities to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behaif of the Company or any of such subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management of the Company has represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any
of such subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of such
subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(d) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for
maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f.
April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023




(h)  As required by section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in
"Annexure -C", a statement on the matters specified in the direction
Issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, and in our opinion,
ne action is required to be taken thereon and there is no impact on
accounts and financial position of the company.

For Deepak Gulati & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 07545p

CA Arjun Singh
(Partner)
Membership no: '5&85

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.05.2023

UDIN No.: “2A3S537% 7882 URY BRTE
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report
Auditor’s Report as per the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, we report
that:

I. A. i. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

B. i. The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management zt reasonable intervals. As informed, no material discrepancies
between book records and the physical inventories have been noticed on such
verification.

ii. The company does not hold any immovable assets in their name.

iii. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

iv. The company do not have any proceedings initiated or are pending for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

II. a. Inventory has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals as at 31.03.2023. In our opinion, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business
and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company is generally
maintaining proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancy was
noticed on physical verification of stocks by the management as compared to
book records.

b. The cempany has not availed any working capital limits from the banks or
financial institutions.

III. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’).

IV. The company has not advanced any loan or given any guarantee or provided
any security or made any investment covered under section 185 and 186 of
Companies Act, 2013,

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to
the extent notified.




VII.

VIII.

IX.

XI.

The company is not required to be maintained the cost records prescribed by
the central government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of customs, cess
and other material statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the
year by the Company with the appropriate authorities..

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company there are no material
dues of wealth tax, duty of customs, income tax, Sales Tax, service Tax,
Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute,

The company has not surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 which are not recorded
in the books of accounts.

The company has not avalled any loans or other borrowings from banks,
financial institutions and Government.

a) The company has not raised money by the way Initial public offer or
further public offer during the year.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year.

c) The Company has issued shares to its holding company namely "Container
Corporation of India Ltd., the holding company” in the form of rights issue
as per section 62 of Company Act 2013 during the current financial year.

a) No fraud has been noticed or reported on or by the company during the
year.,

b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

c) No whistie-blower cumplaings{mhgen received during the year.
i




XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV,

XVII.

XVIII.
XIX.

XXI.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit has been
considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
during the year.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

The company has incurred cash profit of Rs.2.28 lakhs in the current financial
year 2022-23 vis-a-vis a cash profit of Rs.82.99 Lakhs during immediately
preceding financial year 2021-22,

The statutory auditors have not resigned during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements there is no material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report and as per Board of Directors and
management plans the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date.

a) The Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the company.

The company Is having only standalone financial statements, hence any
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the companies
included in the consclidated financial statements is not applicable to this
company.

For Deepak Gulati & Associates

Chartered Accountants’ &3

CA Arjun Singh’
(Partner) .
Membership no: 5

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.05.2023
UDIN No.: -23552737 AGZ0FURB74
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRESH &
- HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeqguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls aver
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal ceontrel over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Owver Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deepak Gulati & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. D?Ségﬂ:@\_

(Partner) Qe
Membership no: 553737

Place: New Delhi

Date: 16.05.2023

UDIN No.: - 23553737842 U fuBlTe |
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ANNEXURE C: - REPORT ON FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED AS
PER DIRECTIONS ISSUED BY THE COMPTROLLER AUDITOR GENERAL OF

INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
S. | Direction u/s 143(5) of Auditor’'s reply on action Impact on
No. ([the Companies Act, taken on the directions financial
2013 statement |
1 | Whether the Company |The company has system in | Nil
has system in place to | place to process accounting
process all the accounting | transactions through IT
transactions through IT | system. The operational
system? If vyes, the|entries of the company like
implications of processing | revenue, customer ledger
of accounting | accounts etc., have Dbeen
transactions outside IT |recorded in Tally Prime. The
system on the integrity of | payments and company
the accounts along with | accounts are maintained in
the financial implications, | Tally Prime. The income
if any, may be stated. generated through Commercial
software is transferred to
accounting software through
separate entries at monthly
intervals. However, the
company has adequate
internal control and audit
systems to verify correctness
of the entries collated and
posted in Tally Prime.
Based on the audit procedure
carried out and as per the
information and explanations |
given to us, no accounting
transactions have been
processed/carried outside the
IT system. Accordingly, there
are no implications on the
integrity of the accounts.
Whether there is any | According to the information
2 |restructuring of an|and explanation given to us|Nil
existing loan or cases of | and based on our examination
waiver / write off of debts | of records of the company,
/ loans [ interest etc. |there has been no
made by a lender to the | restructuring of an existing | -
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| company due to the
company's inability to
repay the loan? If yes,
the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such
cases are properly
accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government

Company, then his
direction is also
applicable for statutory
auditor of lender
company).

loan or cases of waiver / write
off debts / loans / interest etc.
made by a lender to the
company due to the
company’s inability to repay
the loan. Further, no loan has
been availed during the FY
2022-23.

3 | Whether funds (grants /
subsidy etc.) received /
receivable for specific
schemes from Central /
State Government or its
agencies were properly
accounted for / utilized as

per its term and
conditions? List the cases
of deviation.

Based on the information and
explanation given to us, There
are no funds (grant/subsidy
etc.) received/ receivable in
the company and no assets
received from government or
other authorities, Hence not
applicable.

Nil

For Deepak Gulati & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reg. No. 0?545N

CA Arjun Slng\ﬁ
(Partner)
Membership no: 55373?

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16.05.2023

UDIN No.: - 235531 TRGZURU 8374

86




i = aEae sEadian 1 ey
Tord aforeas % faeeh
C/o WA & Fraas iR agera s
! Office of the Director General of Audit
%= Railway Commercial, New Delhi

‘-}w" C/o Comptroller and Auditor General of India
3. e Jurem 7, 98 el 4. Deen Dayal Upadhvava Marp, New Delhi-1 10002

|Mﬂ1i'|7 il " ﬂwm
TEI: DGA/RC/ AA-FHEL/78-21/2023-24/%2/ fgi:28.07.2023
dar .

&,

hY U8 e SeXwTsad fafiies,

Ud. UY 3% 21 A §sfRue uke,

3, |itua, gfvaron -131 029

fara: 31 91 2023 F gHTE a4 F farg v 0E B SevwTgery fafies & faity
faravor uv Hu=h sifaforaw 2013 # URT 143 (6)(b) & Siatfa WA & Fruas
U4 Hgra@udias o1 et |

¥ Py U B SeuEe Riftiee & 31 1 2023 @) I Y & R e
R FUA T 2013 B URT 143 (6) (b) F 3fald YR & oS vd gRAETHsS B
fewforgl srfifta H @I g |

FU1 T A 1 Hadd! Sied Wi S rad! Joil &y

ra'
S fi';l.

87



T

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF FRESH & HEALTHY ENTERPRISES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Fresh & Healthy Enterprises Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The
Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section
139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their Audit Report dated 16 May 2023.

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not to
conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Fresh & Healthy Enterprises
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi Dr. Nilo wami

Dated:1£.07.2023 Director General of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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